
Board of Directors’ Meeting 

Thursday, May 23, 2024  12:00 p.m.  

Midlands Technical College – Harbison Campus (in person) 

7300 College Street, Irmo, SC 29063 

Continuing Education Center, Room 113 and Zoom Meeting (Virtual) 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83466373967?pwd=VjRINU9GdmJiM05BbmkzS2dZOWVxUT09 

Meeting ID: 834 6637 3967  Passcode: 860823  Dial-In Number (929) 205-6099 

OVERALL AGENDA 

A
C

T
IO

N
 

Will Brennan, Chair 

Will Brennan 

Will Brennan 

Melissa Labbe 

Melissa Labbe 

Reginald Simmons 

Reginald Simmons 

Reginald Simmons 

Reginald Simmons 

Reginald Simmons 

Reginald Simmons 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 Britt Poole 

Britt Poole 

A. Call to Order and Introductions

1. Determination of a Quorum

2. Approve Order and Contents of the Overall Agenda

3. Invocation

4. Introduction of New Board Members & Guests

5. Chairman’s Introduction

Good News from CMCOG – Around the Region

B. Consent Agenda

1. Approval of the March 28, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes (Enclosure 1)

C. Regular Agenda

1. Monthly Financial Status Report (February 2024) (Enclosure 2)

2. FY 2025 CMCOG Annual Budget and Work Program (Enclosure 3)

3. *2023 - 2033 TIP Amendment – FY 2021 Sections 5307 & 5310 ARP Funds (Enclosure 4)

4. *2023 - 2033 TIP Amendment – FY 2021 Section 5339 Funds (Enclosure 5)

5. *2023 - 2033 TIP Amendment – FY 2020 Section 5307 Funds (Enclosure 6)

6. *2023 - 2033 TIP Amendment – Assembly Street Phase 2 (Enclosure 7)

7. FY 2024 CMRTA Transit Asset Management Plan (Enclosure 8)

8. Title VI Plan Update (Enclosure 9)

D. Announcements / Committee or Staff Reports / Correspondences

1. CMCOG Committee Reports

2. Executive Director’s Report

E. Old/New Business

F. Other Business

G. Adjourn

REMINDER: The next CMCOG Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 27, 2024 

Note: Full Agenda packets can be found on the CMCOG website at www.cmcog.org. 

*Denotes item is a Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Urbanized Area Request

Agenda Home

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83466373967?pwd=VjRINU9GdmJiM05BbmkzS2dZOWVxUT09
http://www.cmcog.org/


Enclosure 1 

Approval of the March 28, 2024 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

Enclosure 1 – May 2024

Agenda Home



Board of Directors’ Meeting of the  

Central Midlands Council of Governments 

Thursday, March 28, 2024  ♦  11:00 a.m.  ♦  Midlands Technical College 

Harbison Campus – 7300 College Street, Irmo, SC  29063 

Continuing Education Center, Room 113 and via Zoom (Virtual) 

Meeting ID: 895 7635 8709  ♦  Passcode: 536808  ♦  Dial-In Number: (929) 205-6099 

Board Members Present: 

Will Brennan, CHAIR, Columbia City Council 

Vina Abrams, Newberry 

Greg Brewer, Lexington County 

Larry Brigham, Batesburg-Leesville 

Kimberley Brown, Richland County 

Todd Carnes, City of  Lexington 

John Carrigg, Lexington County 

Brian Carter, City of West Columbia 

Phillip Carter, City of Cayce 

Rebecca Connally, Lexington County 

Glen Conwell, Lexington County 

Kyle Crager, Fairfield County 

Todd Cullum, Lexington County Council 

William “Rusty” DePass, City of Columbia 

Clyde “Chuck” Fallaw, III, Richland County Council 

Clarence Gilbert, Fairfield County Council 

T. Wayne Gilbert, Richland County

Darrell Hudson, Lexington County

Haskell Kibler, Forest Acres City Council

Robert Liming, City of Columbia

Paul Livingston, Richland County

Walton McLeod, Newberry County

John McMeekin, Mayor, Town of Winnsboro

Chakisse Newton, Richland County

Stephanie O’Cain, Richland County

Foster Senn, City of Newberry

Lynn Sturkie, Lexington County

Charli Wessinger, Lexington County

Staff Members Present: 

Britt Poole, Executive Director 

Fretoria Addison, LTC Ombudsman Volunteer 

Coordinator/Information Support Specialist 

Roland Bart, Transportation Planner 

Aleigha Chee-you, Ombudsman Program Assistant 

Anna Harmon, Director, Area Agency on Aging 

Jason Kent, GIS Manager 

Melissa Labbe, Finance Director 

Kelly Roberson, Executive Assistant to the Boards 

Reginald Simmons, Deputy Director/Transportation Director 

Gregory Sprouse, Director, Research & Planning  

Lilnora White, HR Manager 

Guests: 

Michael Slapnik 

Dave Bodiford 

Johnathan Guy 

Advisors: 

Will Dillard, Belser Law Firm 

Al Koon 

Ron Rhames 

Agenda Home



0 | P a g e
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND INTRODUCATIONS

A1. Chairman Will Brennan called the meeting to order at 12:04 a.m. on March 28, 2024.     Chairman Brennan

stated that a quorum was present at the time the meeting was called to order.

A2. APPROVE ORDER AND CONTENTS OF THE OVERALL AGENDA

MOTION, approved

Walton McLeod moved for approval, seconded by Robert Liming to approve the Order and Contents

of the Overall Agenda. The motion was approved.

A3. INVOCATION

The invocation was given by Mayor, John McMeekin.

A4. INTRODUCTION OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS & GUESTS

Chairman Brennan introduced Phillip Carter from the City of Cayce, as a new member of the Board of

Directors.

Chairman Brennan also welcomed Will Dillard, Al Koon and Ron Rhames as advisors to the Board.  Along

with Johnathan Guy, Michael Slapnik, and Dave Bodiford as guests.

A5. CHAIRMAN’S INTRODUCTION

Chairman Brennan presented Good News from CMCOG-Around the Region.

 City of Columbia will host Manchester United and Liverpool soccer teams for a friendly match at

Williams-Brice Stadium on August 3, 2024.

 Second graders from Dutch Fork Elementary and Irmo Elementary Schools visited the Richland County

C&D Landfill Drop-Off Center.

 Scout Motors has broken ground on their $2 million electric vehicle plant in Blythewood.  The plant is

estimated to bring 4,000 jobs.

 Lexington District Two has a new state of the art Performing Arts Center in the Town of Springdale.

 Demolition has begun on the redevelopment of the Richland Fashion Mall.  New apartments,

restaurants, a grocery store, and brewery are expected in the new space.

 USC Coach Dawn Staley and Innersole donated shoes to Newberry Elementary School students.

 Fairfield County Chamber of Commerce opened their 1st Visitors Center

B. CONSENT AGENDA

B1. Approval of the February 22, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes

B2. *2024-2025 UPWP Amendment – Intersection Control Evaluation Process

B3. 2024-2025 RPWP Amendment – Intersection Control Evaluation Process

MOTION, approved 

Mayor John McMeekin moved for approval, seconded by Robert Liming to approve the Consent 

Agenda. The motion was approved. 

C. REGULAR AGENDA

C1. Monthly Financial Status Report (January 2024)

Missi Labbi gave presentation regarding the Monthly Financial Status Report (January 2024).

A brief discussion took place.

Agenda Home



1 | P a g e
 

MOTION, approved 

Robert Liming moved for approval, seconded by Foster Senn to approve the Monthly Financial 

Status Report (January 2024) as information only. The motion was approved.  

C2. Briefing on Financial and Compliance Report for FY 2023  

The Financial and Compliance report is still in draft; the goal is to finish by the end of April.  A brief 

presentation was provided by Michael Slapnik and Dave Bodiford.  They stated that though the audit was 

not complete, it appeared that CMCOG would be receiving an unmodified opinion. 

MOTION, approved 

Todd Cullum moved for approval, seconded by Mayor John McMeekin to approve the Draft 

Financial and Compliance Report. The motion was approved.  

C3. *Congestion Management Plan – Interchange Improvements

Jonathan Guy of Kimley Horn provided an overview of the Congestion Management Plan Update.  In 

partnership with SCDOT, CMCOG and the COATS MPO is in the process of updating its CMP.  A 

Congestion Management Process (CMP) is a “living” document that systematically identifies and assesses 

strategies for tackling recurring and non-recurring traffic congestion issues for people and goods while 

improving transportation system reliability and addressing travel-related safety concerns. CMPs work in 

tandem with long-range transportation plans, transportation improvement programs, and unified planning 

work programs through a continuous feedback loop to match strategies with funding and advance them to 

implementation. The purpose of this current update is to include the assessment of the interstate system. 

This assessment will identify mitigation strategies that will address congestion along these corridors which 

may include the recommendation of new interchanges. 

Mr. Simmons referred to a letter that was provided by Lexington County which requested for a list of 

proposed Interstate Interchanges be included in the 2045 LRTP.  Mr. Simmons noted that the CMP update 

will provide such a list, which can be included once the CMP update has been completed.  The other 

option would be to use the recently approved Interstate System Access Change process to develop a list 

that could be considered for the 2045 LRTP.  Mr. Simmons asked the board to consider developing a 2045 

LRTP Interstate Interchange list through the CMP. 

A brief discussion took place. 

MOTION, approved 

Darrell Hudson moved for approval, seconded by Mayor John McMeekin to approve using the 

Congestion Management Plan to develop a future Interchange Improvements list for the 2045 LRTP. 

The motion was approved.  

C4. *2024 & 2025 UPWP Amendment – Forest Acres Intersections

Reginald Simmons requested approval to use $75,000 in the 2024 & 2025 UPWP to conduct a study and 

analysis of the Forest Drive intersections at Trenholm Road and Beltline Boulevard.  CMCOG in 

partnership with SCDOT, its member governments, and the COMET will implement an Intersection 

Control Evaluation Process. This is a data-driven, performance-based framework and approach used to 

objectively screen alternatives and identify an optimal geometric and control solution for an intersection. 

The Intersection Evaluation Process has four steps as part of its analysis which include: 

• Scoping Alternatives

• Safety Analysis

• Operational Analysis

• Multimodal Considerations

Agenda Home



2 | P a g e
 

CMCOG in coordination with SCDOT will use the Intersection Control and Evaluation Process to analyze 

the Forest Drive @ Beltline Blvd and Forest Drive @ Trenholm Road intersections.  An approximately 

$75K budget will be used to conduct this analysis.  Coordination with other SCDOT programs such as 

Regional Mobility and Carbon Reduction as well as working with the City of Forest Acres and the public 

will be included throughout this process. 

A brief discussion took place. 

MOTION, approved 

Haskell Kibler moved for approval, seconded by Foster Senn to amend the 2024 & 2025 UPWP to use 

$75K to study and analyze the intersections along Forest Drive. The motion was approved.  

D. ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMITTEE OR STAFF REPORTS/CORRESPONDENCES

D1. CMCOG Committee Reports

Executive Director Britt Poole updated the Board on events and projects from the following committees:

 CM AAA is 3rd in the state for assessments since the year began on July 1st, behind Appalachia

COG and Trident AAA.  Over time they have moved from a solid middle of the pack to being one

of the leaders in completing assessments.

 Transportation has executed contracts the following contracts:

o Senior Resources to purchase 14 passenger van.

o Irmo Chapin Rec to purchase 10 passenger van.

o Mead & Hunt to conduct the Corley Mill Road - Andrew Corley Road Corridor Feasibility

Study.

 Staff also attended statewide meetings with SCDOT including Planning Funds negotiations and the

CTC Annual Meeting.

 Workforce is hosting 4 upcoming job fairs.

 VITA (Volunteer Income Tax Assistance) provides free tax preparation and filing for low income

families.

 Developing and publishing a Hiring Guide for newly graduated high school students wishing to

enter the workforce.

This was for information only and no action was taken. 

D2. Executive Director’s Report 

 Executive Director Poole encouraged the board to complete the SCCOG conference survey as well

as their size card for their CMCOG shirt.

 He noted that the board will be receiving a conflict-of-interest form that needs to be completed and

submitted.  This is a federal requirement for all board members.

 Central Midlands Board of Directors will meet next on April 25th.

This was for information only and no action was taken. 

Agenda Home



3 | P a g e
 
E. OLD/NEW BUSINESS

None.

F. OTHER BUSINESS

None.

G. ADJOURN

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:04 p.m.

MOTION, approved 

Mayor John McMeekin moved for approval, seconded by Darrell Hudson to adjourn the CMCOG 

Board of Directors’ Meeting.  The motion was approved.  

___________________________________ ________________________________ 

Britt Poole, Secretary-Treasurer  Will Brennan, Chairman 

Agenda Home



4 | P a g e
 

Enclosure 2 

Monthly Financial Status Report 

(March 2024) 

Enclosure 2 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



5 | P a g e
 

Enclosure 2 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



6 | P a g e
 

Enclosure 3 

FY 2025 CMCOG Annual  

Budget and Work Program 

Enclosure 3 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



7 | P a g e
 

Enclosure 3 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



8 | P a g e
 

Enclosure 4 

*2023-2033 TIP Amendment

-FY 2021 Sections 5307 &5310 ARP Funds

Enclosure 4 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



9 | P a g e
 

Memorandum 

TO: All Members of the CMCOG Board of Directors 

FROM: Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director 

DATE: May 16, 2024 

SUBJECT: TIP Amendment – Sections 5307 & 5310 ARP Projects for CMRTA 

REQUESTED ACTION 

The Central Midlands Council of Governments’ staff requests approval to amend the 2023 – 2033 TIP to add the 

following Sections 5307 & 5310 ARP project requests from the CMRTA. 

BACKGROUND 

The American Rescue Plan (ARP) allocated $30.45 billion to the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to support state, 

local, territory, and tribal government transportation systems. The funds helped cover the operating expenses of transit 

agencies to respond to the coronavirus public health emergency. The funds also supported existing programs such as the 

urbanized and rural transit formula programs to offset lost revenue.  

The Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) and Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority (CMRTA) 

have a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that describes the cooperative working relationship of the two 

organizations.  This MOU recognizes that each year most of the FTA grant dollars that are received by CMCOG as 

the designated recipient, will be required by CMRTA, a direct recipient, for the provision of public transit services.  

CMCOG will require some continuing FTA funding to meet our responsibilities under FAST Act and the IIJA as a 

Metropolitan Planning Organization.   

Under this MOU, CMCOG has made the following allocation to CMRTA: 

 Section 5307 American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds FY 2021 $7,418,402 

 Section 5310 American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds FY 2021 $76,308 

The CMRTA is preparing grant applications for the Sections 5307 & 5310 ARP funds for their capital and operating 

needs.  Attached, please find a list of the projects they are requesting with this funding.  

ATTACHMENT 

Section 5307 ARP Project Requests 

Section 5310 ARP Project Requests 

E:\Sllver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Board  Meeting Info\2024 Board Meetings\5-23-24\Enclosure 4 - Section 5307 & 5310 ARP TIP Amendment for CMRTA.doc 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 

Enclosure 4 – May 2024 

Agenda Home

https://www.bing.com/ck/a?!&&p=22fa0181bcc1bedeJmltdHM9MTcxMzY1NzYwMCZpZ3VpZD0wM2NiZmFjNy0zOWZjLTYzNjMtMmJiMC1lYmQ3Mzg0YjYyNjQmaW5zaWQ9NTY4Mg&ptn=3&ver=2&hsh=3&fclid=03cbfac7-39fc-6363-2bb0-ebd7384b6264&psq=fTA+ARP+FUNDS&u=a1aHR0cHM6Ly93ZWIuY3NnLm9yZy9jb3ZpZDE5L3dwLWNvbnRlbnQvdXBsb2Fkcy9zaXRlcy8xMC8yMDIxLzA0L0FuYWx5c2lzLW9mLXRoZS1BbWVyaWNhbi1SZXNjdWUtUGxhbi1JbmZyYXN0cnVjdHVyZS5wZGY&ntb=1
https://www.bing.com/ck/a?!&&p=22fa0181bcc1bedeJmltdHM9MTcxMzY1NzYwMCZpZ3VpZD0wM2NiZmFjNy0zOWZjLTYzNjMtMmJiMC1lYmQ3Mzg0YjYyNjQmaW5zaWQ9NTY4Mg&ptn=3&ver=2&hsh=3&fclid=03cbfac7-39fc-6363-2bb0-ebd7384b6264&psq=fTA+ARP+FUNDS&u=a1aHR0cHM6Ly93ZWIuY3NnLm9yZy9jb3ZpZDE5L3dwLWNvbnRlbnQvdXBsb2Fkcy9zaXRlcy8xMC8yMDIxLzA0L0FuYWx5c2lzLW9mLXRoZS1BbWVyaWNhbi1SZXNjdWUtUGxhbi1JbmZyYXN0cnVjdHVyZS5wZGY&ntb=1
https://www.bing.com/ck/a?!&&p=cdb8b6caaf340eaaJmltdHM9MTcxMzY1NzYwMCZpZ3VpZD0wM2NiZmFjNy0zOWZjLTYzNjMtMmJiMC1lYmQ3Mzg0YjYyNjQmaW5zaWQ9NTY4Ng&ptn=3&ver=2&hsh=3&fclid=03cbfac7-39fc-6363-2bb0-ebd7384b6264&psq=fTA+ARP+FUNDS&u=a1aHR0cHM6Ly93ZWIuY3NnLm9yZy9jb3ZpZDE5L3dwLWNvbnRlbnQvdXBsb2Fkcy9zaXRlcy8xMC8yMDIxLzA0L0FuYWx5c2lzLW9mLXRoZS1BbWVyaWNhbi1SZXNjdWUtUGxhbi1JbmZyYXN0cnVjdHVyZS5wZGY&ntb=1
https://www.bing.com/ck/a?!&&p=cdb8b6caaf340eaaJmltdHM9MTcxMzY1NzYwMCZpZ3VpZD0wM2NiZmFjNy0zOWZjLTYzNjMtMmJiMC1lYmQ3Mzg0YjYyNjQmaW5zaWQ9NTY4Ng&ptn=3&ver=2&hsh=3&fclid=03cbfac7-39fc-6363-2bb0-ebd7384b6264&psq=fTA+ARP+FUNDS&u=a1aHR0cHM6Ly93ZWIuY3NnLm9yZy9jb3ZpZDE5L3dwLWNvbnRlbnQvdXBsb2Fkcy9zaXRlcy8xMC8yMDIxLzA0L0FuYWx5c2lzLW9mLXRoZS1BbWVyaWNhbi1SZXNjdWUtUGxhbi1JbmZyYXN0cnVjdHVyZS5wZGY&ntb=1
https://www.bing.com/ck/a?!&&p=1e88da8a6c76958dJmltdHM9MTcxMzY1NzYwMCZpZ3VpZD0wM2NiZmFjNy0zOWZjLTYzNjMtMmJiMC1lYmQ3Mzg0YjYyNjQmaW5zaWQ9NTY4OA&ptn=3&ver=2&hsh=3&fclid=03cbfac7-39fc-6363-2bb0-ebd7384b6264&psq=fTA+ARP+FUNDS&u=a1aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cudHJhbnNwb3J0YXRpb24uZ292L3NpdGVzL2RvdC5nb3YvZmlsZXMvMjAyMS0wNy9Db3JvbmF2aXJ1cy1TdXBwbGVtZW50YWxzLUZZLTIwMjEtUTMtRmluYW5jaWFsLVN1bW1hcnktYW5kLVVwZGF0ZS5wZGY&ntb=1
https://www.bing.com/ck/a?!&&p=1e88da8a6c76958dJmltdHM9MTcxMzY1NzYwMCZpZ3VpZD0wM2NiZmFjNy0zOWZjLTYzNjMtMmJiMC1lYmQ3Mzg0YjYyNjQmaW5zaWQ9NTY4OA&ptn=3&ver=2&hsh=3&fclid=03cbfac7-39fc-6363-2bb0-ebd7384b6264&psq=fTA+ARP+FUNDS&u=a1aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cudHJhbnNwb3J0YXRpb24uZ292L3NpdGVzL2RvdC5nb3YvZmlsZXMvMjAyMS0wNy9Db3JvbmF2aXJ1cy1TdXBwbGVtZW50YWxzLUZZLTIwMjEtUTMtRmluYW5jaWFsLVN1bW1hcnktYW5kLVVwZGF0ZS5wZGY&ntb=1


 
11 | P a g e Enclosure 4 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
11 | P a g e

Enclosure 4 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
12 | P a g e

Enclosure 5 

*2023-2033 TIP Amendment

-FY 2021 Section 5339 ARP Funds

Enclosure 5 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
13 | P a g e

Memorandum 

TO: All Members of the CMCOG Board of Directors 

FROM: Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director 

DATE: May 16, 2024 

SUBJECT: TIP Amendment – Section 5339 Projects for CMRTA 

REQUESTED ACTION 

The Central Midlands Council of Governments’ staff requests approval to amend the 2023 – 2033 TIP to add the 

following Section 5339 project requests from the CMRTA. 

BACKGROUND 

The Bus and Bus Facilities Program (also called “Section 5339”) is a federally-funded capital grant program initiated 

within the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) authorization bill, and continued in the FAST Act 

(Fixing America’s Surface Transportation) that provides capital funding to replace, rehabilitate, and purchase buses and 

related equipment and to construct bus-related facilities.  

The Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) and Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority (CMRTA) 

have a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that describes the cooperative working relationship of the two 

organizations.  This MOU recognizes that each year most of the FTA grant dollars that are received by CMCOG as the 

designated recipient, will be required by CMRTA, a direct recipient, for the provision of public transit services.  CMCOG 

will require some continuing FTA funding to meet our responsibilities under FAST Act and the IIJA as a Metropolitan 

Planning Organization.   

Under this MOU, CMCOG has made the following allocation to CMRTA: 

 Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities Program Funds FY 2021 $586,728 

The CMRTA is preparing grant applications for Section 5339 funds for their capital and operating needs.  Attached, 

please find a list of the projects they are requesting with this funding.  

ATTACHMENT 

Section 5339 Project Requests 

E:\Sllver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Board  Meeting Info\2024 Board Meetings\5-23-24\Enclosure 5 - FY 2021 Section 5339 TIP Amendment for CMRTA.doc 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210  (803) 376-5390  FAX (803) 376-5394  Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org

Enclosure 5 – May 2024 

Agenda Home

http://www.centralmidlands.org/


 
14 | P a g e Enclosure 5 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
15 | P a g e

Enclosure 6 

*2023-2033 TIP Amendment

-FY 2021 Section 5307 ARP Funds

Enclosure 6 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
16 | P a g e

Memorandum 

TO: All Members of the CMCOG Board of Directors 

FROM: Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director 

DATE: May 16, 2024 

SUBJECT: TIP Amendment – Section 5307 Large Urban Projects for CMRTA 

REQUESTED ACTION 

The Central Midlands Council of Governments’ staff requests approval to amend the 2023 – 2033 TIP to add the 

following Section 5307 project requests from the CMRTA. 

BACKGROUND 

The Urbanized Area Formula Funding Program (49 U.S.C. 5307) makes federal resources available to governors and 

other recipients for transit capital and operating assistance and transportation-related planning in urbanized areas. An 

urbanized area is an area that has been defined and designated by the U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the 

Census as an 'Urban Area' with a population of 50,000 or more.  The Central Midlands Council of Governments has been 

designated by the governor as the recipient for Section 5307 Program funds for the Columbia Urbanized Area. 

The Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) and Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority (CMRTA) 

have a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that describes the cooperative working relationship of the two 

organizations.  This MOU recognizes that each year most of the FTA grant dollars that are received by CMCOG as 

the designated recipient, will be required by CMRTA, a direct recipient, for the provision of public transit services.  

CMCOG will require some continuing FTA funding to meet our responsibilities under FAST Act and the IIJA as a 

Metropolitan Planning Organization.   

Under this MOU, CMCOG has made the following allocation to CMRTA: 

 Section 5307 Large Urban Program Funds FY 2020 $5,399,495.45 

The CMRTA is preparing grant applications for the Section 5307 funds for their capital and operating needs.  

Attached, please find a list of the projects they are requesting with this funding.  

ATTACHMENT 

Section 5307 Large Urban Project Requests 

E:\Sllver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Board  Meeting Info\2024 Board Meetings\5-23-24\Enclosure 6 - FY 2020 Section 5307 TIP Amendment for CMRTA.doc 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210  (803) 376-5390  FAX (803) 376-5394  Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org

Enclosure 6 – May 2024 

Agenda Home

http://www.centralmidlands.org/


 
17 | P a g e Enclosure 6 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
18 | P a g e

Enclosure 7 

*2023-2033 TIP Amendment

Assembly Street Phase 2 

Enclosure 7 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
19 | P a g e Enclosure 7 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
20 | P a g e Enclosure 7 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
21 | P a g e Enclosure 7 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
22 | P a g e

Enclosure 8 

FY 2024 CMRTA 

Transit Asset Management Plan 

Enclosure 8 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
23 | P a g e

Memorandum 

TO: All Members of the CMCOG Board of Directors 

FROM: Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director 

DATE: May 16, 2024 

SUBJECT: FY 2024 CMRTA Transit Asset Management Plan (TAM) 

REQUESTED ACTION 

The Central Midlands Council of Governments’ staff requests approval to adopt the CMRTA FY 2024 Transit Asset 

Management Plan.   

BACKGROUND 

The COMET serves the Central Midlands Area, which includes the Columbia, South Carolina Urbanized Area. The cities, towns 

and counties served includes Columbia, Cayce, West Columbia, Forest Acres, Springdale, Eastover, Chapin, Batesburg-Leesville, 

Lexington and unincorporated areas of Richland and Lexington counties; with fixed route and paratransit services. The 

COMET is committed to providing safe, dependable, affordable, and accessible public transit service to the heart of the 

Midlands Area. 

The population service area of The COMET is 646,895. The COMET is the recipient of Federal Transit Administration Section 

5307 Urbanized Area Formula Grants and depends on other federal, local funds and passenger fares to currently operate. The 

COMET also receives funds and gets approval of the Transit Asset Management (TAM) Plan from the Central Midlands 

Regional Council of Governments. 

RATP Dev USA, Inc presently operates The COMET fixed route, flex route and ADA paratransit services. 

The COMET operates approximately 175,000 vehicle hours on the fixed route system, 15,000 revenue hours on the flex route 

system and 35,000 revenue hours on the flex route and paratransit system. 

Transit services are provided throughout Richland and Lexington Counties on 35 fixed routes, five (5) rural flex routes, and an 

ADA complementary paratransit service. Transit services are provided throughout 1,225 square miles within Richland and 

Lexington Counties currently. The COMET operates a “turn-key” operations and maintenance contract with the contractor 

having the responsibility to provide for all transit operations and maintenance personnel, maintenance parts and insurance. 

The COMET provides all assets, equipment, fuel, facility, and facility utilities. 

ATTACHMENT 

CMRTA TAM Plan Summary 

E:\Sllver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Board  Meeting Info\2024 Board Meetings\5-23-24\Enclosure 8 - CMRTA TAM Plan.doc 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210  (803) 376-5390  FAX (803) 376-5394  Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 

Enclosure 8 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
24 | P a g e

RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TITLE VI PROGRAM & PLAN PURSUANT TO THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 

1964; APPROVING THE ASSOCIATED  

LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY PLAN; AUTHORIZING THE  

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE SAID POLICY ON BEHALF OF THE CENTRAL MIDLANDSCOUNCIL OF 

GOVERNMENTS 

WHEREAS, the Central Midlands Council of Governments is the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization 

(MPO) for transportation planning in the Columbia Urbanized Planning Area which includes all or parts of six 

counties; and   

WHEREAS, to fund its many work activities, CMCOG receives direct or pass-through federal funding from agencies 

such as the US Department of Transportation (Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit 

Administration); the US Department of Health & Human Services (US DHHS); and the US Department of Labor; and 

WHEREAS, as a recipient of federal funds, CMCOG is required to comply with the requirements of Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964 which prohibits discrimination based on race, color and national origin, specifically 42 USC 

2000d, which states that:   No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be 

excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or 

activity receiving Federal financial assistance; and    

WHEREAS, CMCOG must also comply with the additional protections set forth in Presidential Executive Order 

12898 (Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations) 

and Presidential Executive Order 13166 (Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 

Proficiency); and    

WHEREAS, in 2009, CMCOG did develop a Title VI Plan, and in May 2012, CMCOG did develop and adopt a Limited 

English Proficiency Plan and provided an overall plan update in 2015, 2017, and 2020; and   

WHEREAS, as required by the Federal Transit Administration, CMCOG has expanded the Title VI Program & Plan to 

include all necessary elements; and   

WHEREAS, the 2024 Title VI Program & Plan has been reviewed and approved through the Columbia Area 

Transportation Study Metropolitan Planning Organization.     

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Central Midlands Council of Governments certifies compliance with 

policies, procedures and plans with regard to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as amended) and additional 

Assurances as required and hereby adopts its 2024 Title VI Program & Plan; and   

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210  (803) 376-5390  FAX (803) 376-5394  Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 

Enclosure 8 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
25 | P a g e
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Central Midlands Council of Governments directs staff to begin efforts 

immediately to implement the provisions of the 2024 Title VI Program & Plan. 

THE UNDERSIGNED is the duly qualified Executive Director of Central Midlands Council of Governments, and 

hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at a meeting of the Central 

Midlands Council of Governments held on May 23, 2024. 

_______________________________      ______________________________ 

Will Brennan, Chairman D. Britt Poole, Executive Director

Central Midlands Council of Governments Central Midlands Council of Governments

_____________________________ ________________________________ 

Witness Witness 

Enclosure 8 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
26 | P a g e Enclosure 8 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
27 | P a g e Enclosure 8 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
28 | P a g e Enclosure 8 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
29 | P a g e

Enclosure 9 

Title VI Plan Update 

Enclosure 9 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
30 | P a g e

Memorandum 

TO: All Members of the CMCOG Board of Directors 

FROM: Reginald Simmons, Deputy Executive Director/Transportation Director 

DATE: May 16, 2024 

SUBJECT: Title VI/Environmental Justice Plan 

REQUESTED ACTION 

The Central Midlands Council of Governments’ staff requests approval to adopt the COATS MPO Title 

VI/Environmental Justice Plan.   

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 

Federal regulations require that MPOs who are federal grant recipients such as COATS, have a Title VI Program.  Title VI 

of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 states that no person in the United States shall, on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or subjected to discrimination under any program or 

activity receiving federal financial assistance. Title VI prohibits intentional discrimination as well as disparate impact on 

protected groups. The transportation planning regulations require consistency with Title VI and subsequent civil rights 

laws and regulations. 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has issued FTA Circular 4702.1B, “Title VI Requirements and 

Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients” describing how to comply with Title VI regulations. The COATS 

Title VI Program has been developed based on this guidance. 

ATTACHMENT 

Title VI Resolution 

E:\Sllver Flash Drive 3-27-18\Board  Meeting Info\2024 Board Meetings\5-23-24\Enclosure 9 - Title VI Plan Cover Letter.doc 

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210  (803) 376-5390  FAX (803) 376-5394  Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 

Enclosure 9 – May 2024 

Agenda Home

http://www.centralmidlands.org/


 
31 | P a g e

RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TITLE VI PROGRAM & PLAN PURSUANT TO THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 

1964; APPROVING THE ASSOCIATED  

LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY PLAN; AUTHORIZING THE  

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE SAID POLICY ON BEHALF OF THE CENTRAL MIDLANDSCOUNCIL OF 

GOVERNMENTS 

WHEREAS, the Central Midlands Council of Governments is the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization 

(MPO) for transportation planning in the Columbia Urbanized Planning Area which includes all or parts of six 

counties; and   

WHEREAS, to fund its many work activities, CMCOG receives direct or pass-through federal funding from agencies 

such as the US Department of Transportation (Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit 

Administration); the US Department of Health & Human Services (US DHHS); and the US Department of Labor; and 

WHEREAS, as a recipient of federal funds, CMCOG is required to comply with the requirements of Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964 which prohibits discrimination based on race, color and national origin, specifically 42 USC 

2000d, which states that:   No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be 

excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or 

activity receiving Federal financial assistance; and    

WHEREAS, CMCOG must also comply with the additional protections set forth in Presidential Executive Order 

12898 (Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations) 

and Presidential Executive Order 13166 (Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 

Proficiency); and    

WHEREAS, in 2009, CMCOG did develop a Title VI Plan, and in May 2012, CMCOG did develop and adopt a Limited 

English Proficiency Plan and provided an overall plan update in 2015, 2017, and 2020; and   

WHEREAS, as required by the Federal Transit Administration, CMCOG has expanded the Title VI Program & Plan to 

include all necessary elements; and   

WHEREAS, the 2024 Title VI Program & Plan has been reviewed and approved through the Columbia Area 

Transportation Study Metropolitan Planning Organization.     

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Central Midlands Council of Governments certifies compliance with 

policies, procedures and plans with regard to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as amended) and additional 

Assurances as required and hereby adopts its 2024 Title VI Program & Plan; and   

Serving Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands 

236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210  (803) 376-5390  FAX (803) 376-5394  Web Site:  http://www.centralmidlands.org 

Enclosure 9 – May 2024 

Agenda Home



 
32 | P a g e

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Central Midlands Council of Governments directs staff to begin efforts 

immediately to implement the provisions of the 2024 Title VI Program & Plan. 

THE UNDERSIGNED is the duly qualified Executive Director of Central Midlands Council of Governments, and 

hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at a meeting of the Central 

Midlands Council of Governments held on May 23, 2024. 

_______________________________      ______________________________ 

Will Brennan, Chairman D. Britt Poole, Executive Director

Central Midlands Council of Governments Central Midlands Council of Governments

_____________________________ ________________________________ 

Witness Witness 

Enclosure 9 – May 2024 

Agenda Home




